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Kids In Crisis, Inc.
1 Salem Street
Cos Cob, CT 06807-2624

Kids In Crisis, Inc.:

Enclosed are the original and one copy of the 2018 Exempt Organization returns, as follows...
2018 Form 990

2018 New York Form CHARS500

Each original should be dated, signed and filed in accordance with the filing instructions. The copy
should be retained for your files.

VERY TRULY YOURS,

MARKS PANETH LLP

b ) .
™% Morison KSi

W



TAX RETURN FILING INSTRUCTIONS
FORM 990

FOR THE YEAR ENDING
June 30, 2019

Prepared For:

Kids In Crisis, Inc.
1 Salem Street
Cos Cob, CT 06807-2624

Prepared By:

MARKS PANETH LLP
4 Manhattanville Road
Purchase, NY 10577

Amount Due or Refund:

Not applicable

Make Check Payable To:

Not applicable

Mail Tax Return and Check (if applicable) To:

Not applicable

Return Must be Mailed On or Before:

Not applicable

Special Instructions:

This return has been prepared for electronic filing. If you wish to have it transmitted
electronically to the IRS, please sign, date, and return Form 8879-EO to our office. We
will then submit the electronic return to the IRS. Do not mail a paper copy of the return to
the IRS. Return Form 8879-EO to us by May 15, 2020.



IRS e-file Signature Authorization OMB o, 15451878
.. 8879-EQ for an Exempt Organization

For calencls yoar 3018, & Incal yoid Legreing JUL l 2018 and mndng JUN 3 ﬂ 20 1;9‘ 20 1 8
Lomsartmiont &1 T Trwaairy P Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.
Indminal Ravonus Sevice P Go lo www.irs.gow/FormB870EQ for Lhe lalest informalion,
Hame of exempl organization Emplayer identitication number
Kids In Crisis, Inc. ; 16-1027885

Name and tithe of oMlige

Shari Shapiro

Executive Director

[Part] |  Type of Return and Return Information  whole Dollars Only)

Chack the box far the return for which you are using this Form BETS-EQ and enter the apphcable amount, if any, from the return, If you check the box
on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the retumn being filed with thiz form was Blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b,
whichever s applicable, blank (do not enler -0, But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more
than ane e in Part |

1a Form 980 check here E—J b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VI, colurmn (&), ine 12) 4,898 ‘ 669 .
2a Form S90-EZ check here e |:| b Total revenue, il any (Form S90-EZ, hne 9)

3a Form 1120POL checkhere B [ | b Total tax (Form 1120.POL, line 28]
4a Form S90FF check here B[ | b Tox based on investment income (Form S80:FF Part I, ne 5)

6a Form 8868 checkhere B[ | b Balance Due (Form 8868, line 3¢)

1b
2b
b
ab
Bl

Partll | Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and that | have examined a copy of the organization’s 2018
electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and ta the best of my knowledge and beliaf, they are true, comrect, and complete. |
further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy af the arganization's electronic return. | consent to allow my
intermadiate service provider, ransmitter, or electranic retum ariginator (ERQ) to send the arganization's reétum to the IRS and to receive from the IRS
(a) an acknowledgement of receipt ar reason for rejection of the transmission, (b} the reason for any delay in processing the returm or refund, and (¢)
the date of any refund. If applicable, | autharize the U3, Treasury and its designated Financeal Agent to initiate an electron:c tunds withdrawal (direct
debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization’s federal taxes owed on this
return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at
1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also autherize the financial institutions invelved in the
processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive conlidential information necessary to answer inguiries and resolve issues related to the
payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN} as my signature for the organization’s electronic return and, if applicable, the
organization’s consent to electronic funds withdrawal,

Officer's PIN: check one hox only

[¥X] | authorize MARKS PANETH LLP ) to enter my PIN|_ 27885

i EE{II firm name Enter five numbers, but
do not enter all zeros

as my ssgnature on the orgamzation's tax year 2018 electronically filed return, I 1 have indicated within this return thal a copy of the relurn
15 being filed with a state agencylies) regulating chamties as part of the IRS Fed/Stale progeam, | also authorize the aforementioned ERO to
anter my PIM an the return’s disclosure consent screen

|_| As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN as my signature an the geganization’s tax year 2018 electronically filed retum, I | have
indicated with ing filed with a state agency(ins) requlating charitias as part of the IRS Fad/State
program, |wil nsent screen.
Othicer's signature = Date = _4/3/20

| Part 11} | Certificauon anu Aunenucauon

ERO's EFIN/PIN, Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number [EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIM, [ 13697410591 |
Do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which iz my signature on the 2018 electronically filed raturn for the organization indicated above, |
confirm that | am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modemized e-File (MeF) Information for Authaonzed 1RS
a-file Providers Tor Business Relumns.

ER(Y's signature {,.S;mh Datz B _"—t . 3. Wi

ERDO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Noel Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested Te Do So

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions, Form BBTI-EO (2018)

BXI05T 10-76-18



TAX RETURN FILING INSTRUCTIONS
NEW YORK FORM CHAR500

FOR THE YEAR ENDING
June 30, 2019

Prepared For:

Kids In Crisis, Inc.
1 Salem Street
Cos Cob, CT 06807-2624

Prepared By:

MARKS PANETH LLP
4 Manhattanville Road
Purchase, NY 10577

Amount of Tax:

Balance due of $775

Make Check Payable To:

Department of Law

Mail Tax Return To:

NYS Office of Attorney General
Charities Bureau Registration Section
28 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10005

Return Must Be Mailed On Or Before:

Please mail as soon as possible.

Special Instructions:



Send with fee and attachments to:
c HAR500 NYS Office of the Attorney General 20 1 8
- . . . Charities Bureau Registration Section .
NYS Annual Filing for Charitable Organizations 28 Liberty Street Open to Public

www.CharitiesNYS.com New York, NY 10005 Inspection

1.General Information

For Fiscal Year Beginning (mm/dd/yyyy) 07/01/2018 and Ending (mm/dd/yyyy) 06/30/2019

Check if Applicable: Name of Organization: Employer Identification Number (EIN):

[ ] AddressChange | Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885

|:| Name Change Mailing Address: NY Registration Number:

] Initial Filing 1 Salem Street EX 262369

|:| Final Filing City / State / ZIP: Telephone:

[_] Amended Filing Cos Cob, CT 06807-2624 203 622-6556

|:| Reg ID Pending Website: Email:
www.kidsincrisis.org sshapiro@kidsincris

Check your organization’s

Confirm your Registration Category in the
registration category: [ l7aonly [_]EPTLonly DUAL (TA&EPTL) [_| EXEMPT* y g gory

Charities Registry at www.CharitiesNYS.com.

2. Certification

See instructions for certification requirements. Improper certification is a violation of law that may be subject to penalties. The certification requires
two signatories.

We certify under penalties of perjury that we reviewed this report, including all attachments, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
they are true, correct and complete in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to this report.

Shari Shapiro

President or Authorized Officer: Executive Director 4/3/2020
Signature Print Name and Title Date
Robert Fruithandler
Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer: Chief Financial Offi 4/3/2020
Signature Print Name and Title Date

3. Annual Reporting Exemption

Check the exemption(s) that apply to your filing. If your organization is claiming an exemption under one category (7A or EPTL only filers) or both
categories (DUAL filers) that apply to your registration, complete only parts 1, 2, and 3, and submit the certified Char500. No fee, schedules, or
additional attachments are required. If you cannot claim an exemption or are a DUAL filer that claims only one exemption, you must file applicable
schedules and attachments and pay applicable fees.

|:| 3a. 7A filing exemption: Total contributions from NY State including residents, foundations, government agencies, etc. did not
exceed $25,000 and the organization did not engage a professional fund raiser (PFR) or fund raising counsel (FRC) to solicit
contributions during the fiscal year.

|:| 3b. EPTL filing exemption: Gross receipts did not exceed $25,000 and the market value of assets did not exceed $25,000 at any time
during the fiscal year.

4. Schedules and Attachments

See the following page
for a checkilist of |:| Yes No 4a. Did your organization use a professional fund raiser, fund raising counsel or commercial co-venturer
schedules and for fund raising activity in NY State? If yes, complete Schedule 4a.

attachments to
complete your filing. Yes |:| No 4b. Did the organization receive government grants? If yes, complete Schedule 4b.

5. Fee

See the checklist on the 7A filing fee: EPTL filing fee: Total fee:
next page to calculate your

fee(s). Indicate fee(s) you - ) S
rtmen w
are submitting here: $ 25. $ 750. $ 775. epartment of La

Make a single check or money order
payable to:

CHARS500 Annual Filing for Charitable Organizations (Updated January 2019)
*The "Exempt" category refers to an organization’s NYS registration status. It does not refer to its IRS tax designation.

868451 01-15-19 1019 Page 1



Kids In Crisis, Inc.

CHARA00

Annual Filing Checklist

Simply submit the certified CHAR500 with no fee, schedule, or additional attachments IF:

- Your organization is registered as 7A only and you marked the 7A filing exemption in Part 3.

- Your organization is registered as EPTL only and you marked the EPTL filing exemption in Part 3.

- Your organization is registered as DUAL and you marked both the 7A and EPTL filing exemption in Part 3.

Checklist of Schedules and Attachments

Check the schedules you must submit with your CHAR500 as described in Part 4:

L you answered "yes" in Part 4a, submit Schedule 4a: Professional Fund Raisers (PFR), Fund Raising Counsel (FRC), Commercial Co-Venturers (CCV)

If you answered "yes" in Part 4b, submit Schedule 4b: Government Grants

Check the financial attachments you must submit with your CHAR500:
IRS Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF, and 990-T if applicable

All additional IRS Form 990 Schedules, including Schedule B (Schedule of Contributors). Schedule B of public charities is exempt from

disclosure and will not be available for public review.

|:| Our organization was eligible for and filed an IRS 990-N e-postcard. Our revenue exceeded $25,000 and/or our assets exceeded $25,000 in the

filing year. We have included an IRS Form 990-EZ for state purposes only.

If you are a 7A only or DUAL filer, submit the applicable independent Certified Public Accountant’s Review or Audit Report:
|:| Review Report if you received total revenue and support greater than $250,000 and up to $750,000.

Audit Report if you received total revenue and support greater than $750,000

|:| No Review Report or Audit Report is required because total revenue and support is less than $250,000
|:| We are a DUAL filer and checked box 3a, no Review Report or Audit Report is required

Calculate Your Fee

For 7A and DUAL filers, calculate the 7A fee:

|:| $0, if you checked the 7A exemption in Part 3a
$25, if you did not check the 7A exemption in Part 3a

For EPTL and DUAL filers, calculate the EPTL fee:

|:| $0, if you checked the EPTL exemption in Part 3b

l:l $25, if the NET WORTH is less than $50,000

[ $50, if the NET WORTH is $50,000 or more but less than $250,000

[ $100, if the NET WORTH is $250,000 or more but less than $1,000,000
[ $250, if the NET WORTH is $1,000,000 or more but less than $10,000,000
$750, if the NET WORTH is $10,000,000 or more but less than $50,000,000
‘:l $1500, if the NET WORTH is $50,000,000 or more

Send Your Filing
Send your CHAR500, all schedules and attachments, and total fee to:

NYS Office of the Attorney General
Charities Bureau Registration Section
28 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10005

Need Assistance?

Visit:  www.CharitiesNYS.com
Call: (212) 416-8401

Email: Charities.Bureau@ag.ny.gov

074549 1019 CHARS500 Annual Filing for Charitable Organizations (Updated January 2019)

Is my Reqistration Category 7A, EPTL, DUAL or EXEMPT?
Organizations are assigned a Registration Category upon

registration with the NY Charities Bureau:

7A filers are registered to solicit contributions in New York
under Article 7-A of the Executive Law ("7A")

EPTL filers are registered under the Estates, Powers & Trusts
Law ("EPTL") because they hold assets and/or conduct
activities for charitable purposes in NY.

DUAL filers are registered under both 7A and EPTL.

EXEMPT filers have registered with the NY Charities Bureau
and meet conditions in Schedule E - Registration
Exemption for Charitable Organizations . These
organizations are not required to file annual financial reports
but may do so voluntarily.

Confirm your Registration Category and learn more about NY
law at www.CharitiesNYS.com.

Where do | find my organization's NET WORTH?

NET WORTH for fee purposes is calculated on:

- IRS Form 990 Part |, line 22

- IRS Form 990 EZ Part |, line 21

- IRS Form 990 PF, calculate the difference between
Total Assets at Fair Market Value (Part Il, line 16(c)) and
Total Liabilities (Part 11, line 23(b)).

Page 2



CHARS00

Schedule 4b: Government Grants
www.CharitiesNYS.com

2018

Open to Public
Inspection

If you checked the box in question 4b in Part 4, complete this schedule and list EACH government grant award by a domestic (federal, state or local)
agency; interstate or intergovernmental agency (for example Port Authority of New York and New Jersey); and state or local authorities.
Use additional pages if necessary. Include this schedule with your certified CHAR500 NYS Annual Filing for Charitable Organizations.

1. Organization Information

Kids In Crisis,

Name of Organization:

Inc.

NY Registration Number:

EX 262369

2. Government Grants

Name of Government Agency

Amount of Grant

1. The Food and Nutrition Service - Child Nutrition Prog |1. 12,984.
2. The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 2. 163,710.
3.U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - Co |a. 19,195.
4. Town of Ridgefield, CT 4. 120,000.
5. Town of New Canaan, CT 5. 56,000.
6. Town of Greenwich, CT 6. 302,907.
7.city of Stamford, CT 7. 30,000.
8. Town of Darien, CT 8. 1,125.
9. Town of Wilton, ct 9. 30,000.
10.Town of Newtown, CT 10. 43,690.
11Brien McMahon High School, Norwalk, CT 11. 75,000.
12. 12.

13. 13.

14. 14.

15. 15.

Total Government Grants: Total: 854,611.

868481 01-15-19

1019 CHARS500 Schedule 4b: Government Grants (Updated January 2019)

Page 1




~n 990

Department of the Treasury

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

P> Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2018 andending JUN 30, 2019
B Check if C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:
taree | Kids In Crisis, Inc.
’S‘r?e;?@e Doing business as 06-1027885
'rg'ﬁ'ﬁ# Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
iy 1l Salem Street 203-622-6556
il City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G _Gross receipts $ 6 ’ 235 r 833.
Amended| Cos Cob, CT 06807-2624 H(a) Is this a group return
Dﬁgﬁn_ca_ F Name and address of principal officer: Shari Shapiro for subordinates? . |:|Yes No
pending same as C above H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:|Yes l:l No

I Tax-exempt status: 501(c)3) [ 1501(c)(

)« (insertno.) [ 4947(a)(1)or [_] 527

J Website: > wWww.kidsincrisis.org

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)
H(c) Group exemption number P>

K Form

of organization: Corporation [ ] Trust [ ] Associaion [ ] Other p»

| L Year of formation: 197 8] m State of legal domicile: C'T

[Partl| Summary

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: Emergency shelter for children

Check this box P> |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

3
g
gl 2
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 20
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 20
@ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (Part V, line2a) . . ... 5 74
5*; 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if NneCesSary) 6 685
%G| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 38 ... .. ... ... ... ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIl, line 1h) 4,101,518. 4,644,578.
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VI, line 2g) 0. 0.
3| 10 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), lines 3,4, and 7d) ... 1,103,494. 270,790.
€1 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) -46,140. -16,699.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VI, column (A), line12) ... 5,158,872. 4,898,669.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . .. ... 0. 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0. 0.
gl 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part X, column (A), lines 5-10) 3,107,633. 3,521,615.
2 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) . 0. 0.
:-’. b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) P 647,739.
Wl 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f24¢) 981,473. 1,114,004.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 4,089,106. 4,635,619.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ... ... 1 r 069 .7 66. 263 ) 050.
‘6% Beginning of Current Year End of Year
‘§ 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 12,017,952. 12,550,483.
% 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 316,606. 259,714.
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 11,701, 346. 12,290,769.

[Part 1l | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here Shari Shapiro, Executive Director
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check [ ]| PTIN

Paid SCOTT M. BRENNER seemployed [P01247233
Preparer | Firm's name > MARKS PANETH LLP Firm's EIN p 11-3518842
Use Only |Firm'saddressp 4 Manhattanville Road

Purchase, NY 10577 Phoneno. (914)524-9000

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

Yes \:| No

832001 12-31-18

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 page2

Part lll | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il ... |:|

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
Kids In Crisis, Inc. provides free, 24 hour crisis intervention,
counseling and emergency shelter services, as well as prevention
programs in local communities, and advocacy throughout Connecticut.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior FOrm 990 0r 990-EZ? e [ Ives [X]No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? ... . . |:|Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 2 ) 1 4 8 ) 2 9 7. including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 6 4 7 2 2 7. )
Safe Haven - Combined Crisis Nursery and Teen House - providing
counseling, temporary emergency housing, and medical care for children
aged newborn to 17.

4b  (Code: ) (Expenses $ 1 ) 6 5 6 7 2 1 8 e including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
Community service program - On site services at local high schools,
middle schools, and elementary schools for children in need.

4c  (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses P> 3,804,515.

Form 990 (2018)

832002 12-31-18



Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885  page3
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If "Yes," complete SChedUIB A ...............coe oo 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? ... ... . 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete SChedule C, Part | ................oco oo 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il ...................ccoo@ oo 4 X
5 s the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? |f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il ...................ccoocvooveee . 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ....................ccoocvooveeeei. 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? Jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE D, PAFE Il ...\ oo\ oo oo 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V.  ................oo oo 10| X
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D,
PAIt VI oo 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ... oo 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ...................ccoo oo 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 Jf "Yes, " complete SChedule D, Part IX ... e 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 11f | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE D, Parts XI GNG XI1 ...\ oo\ oo oo 12a| X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes, " and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XIl is optional ............... 12b | X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? If "Yes," complete Schedule E ... ... 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ... 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | @Nd IV ...............c.ccooi oo 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? if "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts l1and IV . 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts llland IV ... ... . 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part | ...................coo oo 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete SChedule G, Part Il ....................c..coo oo 18 | X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes,"
complete SCheAUIE G, Part Il ...................c.ccoo oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? jf "Yes," complete Schedule H ..o 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retun? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? /f "Yes." complete Schedule |. Parts 1 and Il ..............cccccooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 21 X

832003 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885  page 4
| Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinueq)

Yes [ No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? [f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ...................ocoo oo 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIB J ... 23 | X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? |f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If "NO," GO 10 lIN@ 25@ .............oe oo 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? .. .. 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exXemPt DONAS ? 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? .. ... 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | ................ccoccocviiveeeeeie. 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? |f "Yes," complete

SCREAUIE L, PAE | oo\ oo\ 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or

former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? /f "Yes,"

ComMPlete SCREAUIE L, Part Il ... e 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial

contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member

of any of these persons? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part lll  .........................oo oo 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ............................... 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ....................cocco oo 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedule M ........................... 29 | X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? If "Yes," complete SCREAUIE M ................. oo 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations?
If "Yes," complete SChedUIe N, Part | ... 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE N, PAFE Il ...\ oo\ oo 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | .................c.ccooo oo 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I, Ill, or IV, and
Part V, 18 T .ooo.. oo 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 353, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 .................cocooeoooooeoeee 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, N8 2 ..................ccooi oo 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI .................... 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... il 38 | X
PartV| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPartv.~~~~~~ . |:|
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . 1a 10
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0

¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming

(gambling) WiNNINGS 10 PHZE WINNEIS ? 1c | X
832004 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)




Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885  page5

[Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued)

Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... . ... 2a 74
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2 | X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) ... ...
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? .. 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? if "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O .............................. 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: P>
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .. 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were Not tax dedUcCtible? 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a | X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? ... 7 | X
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
O file FOMM 2827 e 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ... ... ... ... 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? [ 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during theyear? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line12 . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during theyear ... .. | 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves on hand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? Jf "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O .......................... 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885  Page6

Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure ro each "ves" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ...
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear 1a 20
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . . . ... 1b 20
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or Key emMplOYee? 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’'s assets? . ... .. 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing DoAY ? 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing body? 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
a The governing body? 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? sb | X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? Jf "Yes." provide the names and addresses in Schedule QO oo 9 X
Section B. Policies (7hjs Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . .. 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13 ... oo 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? . . 12b | X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? |f "Yes," describe
in Schedule O NOW thiS WAS QOME ... ..o 12c | X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower POliCY ? 13 | X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? il 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed pCT , NY
Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

\:| Own website \:| Another’s website Upon request \:| Other (explain in Schedule O)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records P>

Robert Fruithandler - 203-622-6556
1] Salem Street, Cos Cob, CT 06807

832006 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)
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Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

® | ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-
able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

|:| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (€) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average | ..o crf; Sl(s::lc)?gthan one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for ’gf . = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related 2 % . % (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | 5 s |5 and related
below Elel.]Ee18E = organizations
IEEHEHERE
(1) Amy Lewis 1.00
Member (Outgoing 10/17/2018) X 0. 0. 0.
(2) Angela Swift 1.00
Member X 0 . 0 . 0 o
(3) Blake Holden 1.00
Member X 0 . 0 . 0 o
(4) Briggs Forelli 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(5) Christine Hikawa 1.00
Member (Outgoing 10/17/2018) X 0. 0. 0.
(6) Craig Packer 1. 00
Vice Chair (Outgoing 10/17/2018) X 0. 0. 0.
(7) Eileen Walker 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(8) Eric Jordan 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(9) James Wenning 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(10) Jami Sherwood 1.00
Secretary X X 0 . 0 . 0 .
(11) Jeffrey Palma 1.00
Treasurer X X 0 . 0 . 0 .
(12) Jennie Stehli 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(13) Joanne Mortimer 1.00
Vice Chairmen X X 0. 0. 0.
(14) Joseph Chu 1.00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(15) Karina Solomon 1. 00
Member X 0. 0. 0.
(16) Lisa Schneider 1. 00
Member (Outgoing 10/17/2018) X 0. 0. 0.
(17) Michael Case 1. 00
Counsel X X 0 . 0 . 0 o

832007 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)
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| Part VI | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) (€) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average (do not cri Sksri:iocr)?than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per [ box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any = the organizations compensation
hours for S = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | g | £ 2 (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | = S and related
below |S|2| . |2 |58, organizations
line) 2| 2|5 |5|28| 5
(18) Ralph Wyman 1.00
Member X 0 . 0 . 0 o
(19) Richard Fedeli, Jr. 1.00
Member (Outgoing 10/17/2018) X 0. 0. 0.
(20) Richard Granoff 1.00
Member X 0 . 0 . 0 o
(21) Stan Galanski 1.00
Vice Chairmen X X 0. 0. 0.
(22) Stuart Aronson 1. 00
Member X 0 . 0 . 0 o
(23) Tanya Smith 1.00
Vice Chairmen X X 0. 0. 0.
(24) Tom Davidson 1.00
Member X 0 . 0 . 0 o
(25) William Pierz 1.00
Chairman X X 0. 0. 0.
(26) Robert Fruithandler 40.00
Chief Financial Officer X 79 ’ 298. 0. 7,454.
1b Sub-total _ 79,298. 0. 7,454.
c 750,894. 0.]120,277.
d Total(addlinestband1¢) ... > 830,192. 0.]127,731.
2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization P> 5
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule J for Such indiVIdU@l ... 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ... 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? Jf "Yes " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEISOM «ooioviiiiiiiii i 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B)
Name and business address NONE Description of services

(C)
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization P> 0

See Part VII, Section A Continuation sheets

832008 12-31-18
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Form 990 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885
| Part VI | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours (check all that apply) compensation compensation amount of
per from from related other
week _ ?‘Z; the organizations compensation
(list any = = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
hours for § . g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
related - . % and related
organizations % é ;: £ organizations
below 2|S|(s|El2]|s
ine) |E|Z|E|z|2|E
(27) Shari Shapiro 40.00
Executive Director X 208,238. 0. 33,301.
(28) Denise Dammer-Qualey 40.00
Mng Director Clinical Services X 161,103. 0. 35,977.
(29) Alon Marom 40.00
Director of Community Giving X 143 ’ 864. 0. 15 ’ 802.
(30) Michael Ferguson 40.00
Director of Quality Assurance X 124,823. 0. 16,959.
(31) Natasha Hafez 40.00
Director of Ind Giving X 112,866. 0. 18,238.
Total to Part VII, Section A, line 1C .. 750,894. 120,277.

832201
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Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885  Page9
Part VIIl | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIIL e D
(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated R?ygr?]ué %C#(Jjg?d
exempt function business sections
revenue revenue 512 -514
24 1 a Federated campaigns . |1a 75,260,
§ b Membershipdues . 1b
3 ¢ Fundraisingevents 1c 782,728,
g d Related organizations ... 1d
& e Government grants (contributions) 1e 854,611,
_5. f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
§ similar amounts not included above 1f 2,931,979,
."E g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $ 66,364,
3 h Total. Addlinesta-tf ... ... > 4,644,578,
Business Code|
8|2
I b
b c
é d
S e
o f All other program service revenue . .
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f ... »
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similaramounts) > 190,822, 190,822,
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds | 2
5 ROYaM©S ..o |
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6 a Grossrents
b Less: rental expenses
¢ Rental income or (loss) .
d Netrentalincomeor (I0SS) . ..........ooooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii. >
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory 1,199,546,
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses 1,119,578,
¢ Gainor(oss) 79,968,
d Netgain or (10SS) ... | 2 79,968, 79,968,
ol 82 Gross income from fundraising events (not
2 including $ 782,728, of
% contributions reported on line 1c). See
« PartIV,line 18 a 136,660,
% b Less:directexpenses b 217,586.
© Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ... > -80,926. -80,926.
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line19 . a
b Less: direct expenses b
Net income or (loss) from gaming activities .................. >
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances . a
Less: costofgoodssold b
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory .................. >
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code|
11 a Miscellaneous 900099 64,227, 64,227,
b
c
d Allotherrevenue .
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d | 2 64,227,
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... > 4,898,669, 64,227, 0. 189,864.

832009 12-31-18
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Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 page 10
[ Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ...
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total éfgenses Progragr?)service Managég)ent and Funcslr:;)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIIl. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22
8 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines15and 16 .
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 585,052. 469,404. 63,539. 52,1009.
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ...
7 Othersalariesandwages 2,363,572. 2,016,663. 38,100. 308,809.
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 60,926. 51,325. 880. 8,721.
9 Other employee benefits 298,670. 278,636. 310. 19,724.
10 Payrolitaxes 213,395, 182,073. 3,581. 27,741.
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management ..
b Legal
¢ Accounting 16,000. 6,400. 6,400. 3,200.
d Lobbying ...
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 319,896. 293,785. 8,647. 17,464.
12 Advertising and promotion
13 Office expenses 183,082. 94,278. 30,692. 58,112.
14 Information technology 53,640. 43,726. 4,953. 4,961.
15 Royalties .
16 Occupancy 28,803. 26,499. 1,152. 1,152.
17 Travel
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .
20 Interest
21 Paymentsto affiliates . ..
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization . 200 ' 974. 170 ’ 827. 10 ’ 049. 20 P 098.
23 Insurance 41,708. 38,1009. 1,895. 1,704.
24  Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If line
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a Indirect Fundraising EX 117,042. 117,042.
b Food & resident exp. 67,930. 67,930.
¢ Prog/Household supplies 34,1009. 34,1009.
d Vehicle expenses 25,181. 23,401. 786. 994.
e All other expenses 25,639. 7,350. 12,381. 5,908.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 4,635,619. 3,804,515. 183, 365. 647,739.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here > \:l if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

832010 12-31-18
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Form 990 (2018) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 page 11
[ Part X | Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . |:|
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash - non-interest-bearing 1 ’ 134 ’ 077.] 1 336 ’ 343.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 702,465.| 2 1,434,834.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 673 ’ 925.| 3 876 ’ 006.
4  Accounts receivable, net 121,011.| 4 114,699.
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary
a employees’ beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part Il of SchL 6
ﬁ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< 8 Inventories forsaleoruse ... 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 3,482.| o 3,226.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 7, 281 ’ 042.
b Less: accumulated depreciation .. 10b 3,534,812, 3,878,431.] 10c 3,746,230.
11 Investments - publicly traded securites 5,504,561.]| 11 6,039,145.
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 12,017,952.| 16 12,550,483.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 270,606.| 17 259,714.
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 46 ’ 000.]| 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
o | 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
é key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
% Complete Part Il of ScheduleL 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
Schedule D 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ... 316,606.| 26 259,714.
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P> and
@ complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
@ [ 27 Unrestricted netassets 7,084,223, 27 7,368,677.
= | 28  Temporarily restricted net assets 1,743,654.]| 28 1,999,686.
% 29 Permanently restricted net assets 2 r 873 ’ 469.] 29 2 ’ 922 ’ 406.
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P> \:|
5 and complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ... 30
# | 81 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 31
g 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
Z | 33 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances . 11,701,346. 33 12,290,769.
34  Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 12 ’ 017 ’ 952.| 34 12 ,55 0 ’ 483.
Form 990 (2018)
832011 12-31-18
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Part XI | Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 4,898,669.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 4,635,619.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 263 ’ 050.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A) 4 11,701,346.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 326 ’ 373.
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 Investment expenses 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
COIUMIN (B)) oot ieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 10 12,290,769-
Part Xll| Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Xl ... e
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . 2b | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Actand OMB Circular A-133? 3a X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ... 3b
Form 990 (2018)
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

OMB No. 1545-0047

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 20 1 8

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Open to Public

Name of the organization

Kids In Crisis, Inc.

Employer identification number

06-1027885

[Part] | Reason for Public Charity Status (all organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

HON

city, and state:

|:| A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
|:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
|:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s name,

(4]

university:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)
A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

0 00 B0 O

10

An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a |:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e \:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported Organizations |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization ir(w‘\)l/)olusrighgv%;ﬂzgoh gﬂmlzfr?t% (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
organization (described on lines 1-10 —| support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
9 above (see instructions)) Yes No pport { ) pport { )
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

832021 10-11-18  Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Page2
Partll | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 3561374.| 3448743.| 3150794.| 4101518.| 4644578.(18907007 .

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Addlines1throughd | 3561374.] 3448743.| 3150794.| 4101518.| 4644578.[18907007.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

coumn(@®
Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 1 8 9 0 7 0 0 7.
Sectlon B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
7 Amounts from line 4 3561374.| 3448743.| 3150794.| 4101518.| 4644578.(18907007.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources 179 ’ 074.] 231 ’ 436.| 128 ’ 249.| 167 ’ 405.] 190 ’ 822.| 896 ’ 986.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part VI) 1301262.] 941,723.( 1140793.] 339,034.| 200,887.]| 3923699.
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 23727692,
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 |

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and StOP NEre ... e | 2 \:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) ... ... ... 14 79.68 %
15 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Il, line14 15 76.74 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >

b 33 1/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 163, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization | 2 \:|

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018. [f the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . | 2 \:|
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Pages
Part lll | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 ...
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b .

8 Public support. (Subtractline 7c from line 6.)
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Add lines 10aand10b
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VI.) ...
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

CheCK thiS DOX AN SEOP NEIE ...ttt ettt et e ee e S
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part lll, line 15 ... .. ... 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2018 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ... 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2018. [f the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... . ... ... > \:|

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization > \:|
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  ........................ > \:|

832023 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Page4s

Part IV | Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? /f
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f "Yes,"

answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5¢c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI. 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? Jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? /f "Yes," answer 10b below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

832024 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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[Part IV | Supporting Organizations (-ontinued)

Yes [ No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b

¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? Jf "Yes" to a. b. or c. provide detail in Part VI. 1ic

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "Yes," explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised. or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a \:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b \:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
¢ [_] The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? |f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more

of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? f "Yes," explain in Part VI the

reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? Jf "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role plaved by the organization in this regard. 3b
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc.

06-1027885 pPage6

| PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI.) See instructions. All
other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3

Depreciation and depletion

G [h (DN |=

o [O [b | IN |[=

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

)]

7  Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

1d

o | |0 |T |»

Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

w

Subtract line 2 from line 1d

w

H

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions)

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by .035

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

® [N (o o

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

®© [N (o |0 |~

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

Enter 85% of line 1

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3

Income tax imposed in prior year

a[h (DN |=

o [O (b | IN |-

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions)

6

~

instructions).

\:| Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

832026 10-11-18
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[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (-ontinued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

® [N (o |0 |~ |

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

U]

Excess Distributions

(ii) (iii)
Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2018 Amount for 2018

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018 (reason-
able cause required- explain in Part VI). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

From 2013

From 2014

From 2015

From 2016

From 2017

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

STKre|™jo a0 ||

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Carryover from 2013 not applied (see instructions)

-

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

Distributions for 2018 from Section D,
line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2019. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2014

Excess from 2015

Excess from 2016

Excess from 2017

o | |0 |T |

Excess from 2018

832027 10-11-18
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Pages

Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

Schedule A, Part II, Line 10, Explanation for Other Income:

FUNDRAISING

2014 Amount: § 1,215,923.
2015 Amount: § 830,261.
2016 Amount: §$ 1,039,735.
2017 Amount: §$ 297,440.
2018 Amount: §$ 136,660.

GAMING ACTIVITIES

2014 Amount: $ 85,339.

2015 Amount: $ 95,486.

2016 Amount: $ 94,370.

MISCELLANEQOUS

2015 Amount: 15,976.

2016 Amount: 6,688.

S
S

2017 Amount: §$ 41,594.
S

2018 Amount: 64,227.

832028 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No. 1545-0047

(F°5%9§|9’ 990-EZ, P Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.
gr -PF) P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 20 1 8
epartment of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation

527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947 (a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under

sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part Il, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from
any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h;
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for the
prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering "N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address),
Il, and Ill.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box

is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,

purpose. Don’t complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year > $

Caution: An organization that isn’t covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF),
but it must answer "No" on Part 1V, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it doesn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

LHA

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

823451 11-08-18

NOT FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 2

Name of organization

Kids In Crisis, Inc.

Employer identification number

06-1027885

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
1 | Berger Family Foundation Person
Payroll |:|
P.O. Box 983 $ 150,000. Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
Riverside, CT 06878 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
2 | balio Family Foundation Person
Payroll |:|
One Glendinning Place $ 100,000. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
Westport, CT 06880 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
3 | Mr Thomas M Triplett Person
Payroll |:|
15 Sydney Lanier Lane $ 100,000. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
Greenwich, CT 06831 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
The U.S. Department of Health and
4 | Human Services Person
Payroll |:|
200 Independence Avenue, S.W. $ 163,710. Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
Washington, DC 20201 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
5 | Town of Greenwich, CT Person
Payroll \:|
101 Field Point Road $ 302,907. Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
Greenwich, CT 06830 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
6 | Town of Ridgefield, CT Person
Payroll \:|
400 Main Street $ 120,000. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
Ridgefield, CT 06877 noncash contributions.)

823452 11-08-18
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 3

Name of organization

Kids In Crisis,

Inc.

Employer identification number

06-1027885

Partll Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.
(a) (©)
No.

L. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

(a) ©)
No.

L. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

(a) ©)
No.

L. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

a
r(lo) (b) (c) (d)

L. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

a
r(lo) (b) (c) (d)

. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

a
No. (b) © (d)

. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

823453 11-08-18
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 4

Name of organization

Kids In Crisis, Inc.

Employer identification number

06-1027885

Part lll  Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations

completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) > $

Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed.

(a) No.
;FOTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
'f;‘OTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
'f;‘OTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
'f;‘OTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

823454 11-08-18
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. . OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements >

(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 20 1 8
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. S )

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990. pen t‘! Public

Internal Revenue Service PpGo to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

G A ON =

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total numberatend ofyear ...

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value atend ofyear .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? |:| Yes |:| No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private bDenefit? il |:| Yes |:| No

| Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

2

o 0 T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

|:| Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area

|:| Protection of natural habitat |:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:| Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (@) ... ... 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure

listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located P>

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? \:| Yes \:| No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

>

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

> $

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? [ Ives [_INo
In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and

include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for
conservation easements.

Part lll [ Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part Xlll,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

(i) Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 > $
(ii) Assetsincluded in Form 990, Part X | ]
2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 > $
b _Assets included in Form 990, Part X i iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii » $
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018

832051 10-29-18



Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 page?
[Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (ontinueq)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items
(check all that apply):
a [ Public exhibition
b |:| Scholarly research
c |:| Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIII.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? |:| Yes

Part IV | Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

d |:| Loan or exchange programs

e |:| Other

|:|No

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
ONFOrmM 990, Part X7
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table:

Amount
C Beginning DalanCe 1c
d Additions during the year . 1d
e Distributions during the year 1e
f

Ending balance 1f

|:| Yes

|:|No

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?
b _If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIlI
| Part V | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance 2,873,469, 2,820,584, 2,781,716, 2,770,866, 2,760,475,
b Contributons 48,937, 52,885, 38,868, 10,850, 10,391,
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 275,173, 162,375, 162,877, 1,763, 63,417,
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs 275,173, 162,375, 162,877. 1,763, 63,417,
f Administrative expenses
g End of year balance 2,922,406, 2,873,469, 2,820,584, 2,781,716, 2,770,866,
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment P> %
b Permanent endowment p> 100.00 %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment P> %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization
by: Yes | No
(i) unrelated OrganizatioNs 3a(i) X
(1) related OrQaN ZatioNS 3a(ii) X
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b

4 Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Part VI |Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation

1a Land . 1,236,000. 1,236,000.

b Buildings 5,678,129. 3,293,097. 2,385,032.

¢ Leasehold improvements

d Equipment 244,199. 166,950. 77,249.

e Other ... 122,714. 74,765. 47,949.
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990. Part X. column (B). line 10¢.) oo » 3,746,230.

832052 10-29-18
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 page3

Part VllI| Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives .

(2) Closely-held equity interests

(3) Other

A

B)

©)

(D)

E

—~
M~

F

l—~
M~

G

I~

(= |

H

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) p»

Part Vlll| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
@
(8)
(9)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) B>

Part IX| Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

Total. Jumn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)lin@ 18.) «oooooeoeneeseeoeee >
Part X | Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(

Federal income taxes

™

@

=

@

©

~
N

©

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

[©

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990. Part X, col. (B) line 25.) ............... |

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XII|
Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 page4d

Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 5,108,000.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a 326 ’ 373.

b Donated services and use of facilities 2b

c Recoveries Of prior year grants 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 326,373.
3 Subtractline 2e from line 1 3 4,781,627.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line7b ... .. 4a

b Other DescribeinPartXIll)y 4b 117,042.

C AddliNes 4a and Ab 4c 117,042,

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [ liN€ 12.)  ..iiiiimiiiii et 4 ’ 898 ‘ 669.

Part Xl | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 4 ,5 18 ,577.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities 2a

b Prior year adjustments 2b

¢ Otherlosses 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL.) 2d

e Add lINes 2a throUGN 2d 2e 0.
3  Subtract line 2e from lINe 1 3 4,518,577.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b .. ... ... ... 4a

b Other (Describein Part XIIL) 4b 117,042.

c Addlines daand Ab 4c 117,042.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990. Part L fine 18 oo 5 4,635,619.

| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Part X, Line 2:

Kids In Crisis, Inc. evaluates all significant tax positions in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America. As of June 30, 2019, Kids In Crisis, Inc. does not believe that

it has taken any positions that would require the recording of any

additional tax liability nor does it believe that there are any unrealized

tax benefits that would either increase or decrease within the next year.

Kids In Crisis, Inc. is no longer subject to audits by the applicable

taxing authorities for the periods prior to 2016.

Part XI, Line 4b - Other Adjustments:

Special Events - Indirect Expenses 117,042.
832054 10-29-18 Schedule D (Form 990) 2018




Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 pPages

[Part XIll | Supplemental Information (.,tinued)

Part XII, Line 4b - Other Adjustments:

Special Events - Indirect Expenses 117,042.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
832055 10-29-18



SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) | Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not
required to complete this part.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a |:| Mail solicitations e |:| Solicitation of non-government grants
b |:| Internet and email solicitations f |:| Solicitation of government grants
c |:| Phone solicitations g |:| Special fundraising events

d |:| In-person solicitations
2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, or
key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? |:| Yes |:| No
b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

ili) Did v) Amount paid . .
(i) Name and address of individual " . fsm raiser (iv) Gross receipts té zor retaine@ by) (vi) Amount paid
or entity (fundraiser) (i) Activity have custody from activity fundraiser to (or retained by)
contributions? listed in col. (i) organization
Yes | No
Total e >
3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration
or licensing.
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis,

Inc.

06-1027885 pPage2

Part Il Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more than $15,000
of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
(add col. (a) through
Gala Event [Have a Heart 3 col. (c)

o (event type) (event type) (total number) ’

§ 1 Grossreceipts 413,533, 153,096. 352,759. 919,388.
2 Less: Contributons 347,533. 131,396. 303,799. 782,728.
3 Gross income (line 1 minus line2) ... . . 66,000. 21,700. 48,960. 136,660.
4 Cashprizes
5 Noncashprizes

8

%6 Rent/facility costs 66,819. 15,247. 36,206. 118,272.

x

% 7 Food and beverages 600. 30,678. 31,278.

.’Dz
8 Entertainment 6,006- 850. 6,856-
9 Other direct expenses 40,908. 11,644. 8,628. 61,180.
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through Q incolumn (d) | 2 217 , 5 86.
11 _Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) ... > -80,926.

Part Ill | Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

(b) Pull tabs/instant

(d) Total gaming (add

% (a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo (c) Other gaming col. (a) through col. (c))
2
I
1 GrosSrevenuUe ...
ol 2 Cashprizes
3
&
ol 3 Noncashprizes
i
§ 4 Rent/facilitycosts
=
5 Otherdirectexpenses ...
\:| Yes % \:| Yes % \:| Yes %
6 Volunteerlabor \:| No \:| No \:| No
7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5incolumn (d) »
8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d)  ............ocooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii | 2

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:

a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?
b If "No," explain:

10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?
b If "Yes," explain:

832082 10-03-18

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Pages

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? |:| Yes |:| No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed
to administer Charitable QamiNg 2 |:| Yes |:| No
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization’s facility 13a %
b AN OULSIAE FaC Y 13b %
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gaming/special events books and records:
Name P>
Address P>
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? |:| Yes |:| No

b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization P> $
of gaming revenue retained by the third party P> $
c If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

and the amount

Name P>

Address P>

16 Gaming manager information:

Name P>

Gaming manager compensation p> $

Description of services provided P>

|:| Director/officer |:| Employee |:| Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions:

a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state Gaming CeNSE Y [ Ives [_INo

b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the
organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year » $

Part IV| Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part |, line 2b, columns (jii) and (v); and Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 10b,
15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions.

832083 10-03-18 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Page 4

[Part IV | Supplemental Information ptinued)

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ)
832084 04-01-18



SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMEB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990. Open to P_Ub“c
Internal Revenue Service D> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885
[Part]l | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Ill to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
|:| First-class or charter travel |:| Housing allowance or residence for personal use
|:| Travel for companions |:| Payments for business use of personal residence
|:| Tax indemnification and gross-up payments |:| Health or social club dues or initiation fees
|:| Discretionary spending account |:| Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part lll to explain ... ... 1b
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on linet1a? 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization’s
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part lll.
|:| Compensation committee |:| Written employment contract
|:| Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 4a X
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 4b X
c Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c X

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Ill.

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a Theorganization? 5a X
b Any related organization? 5b X
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part llI.
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization? 6a X

b Any related organization? 6b X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part llI.
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments

not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes," describe in Part Il 7 X

8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Partt ... 8 X

9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations seCtion 53.4058-0(C) 2 . i iiiiiiiiiiiiii i eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii.s 9

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Page 2
| Part Il | Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii).
Do not list any individuals that aren’t listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (BJ)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns | (F) Compensation

0B e 2 (i) ot other deferred benefits (B)(i)-(D) in column (B)

) i) Base ii) Bonus iii er i

(A) Name and Title compensation incentive reportable compensation reop:qogsgralzso?:;fzggd

compensation compensation

(1) Shari Shapiro Ml 208,238. 0. 0. 8,330. 24 ,971. 241,539. 0.
Executive Director (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(2) Denise Dammer-Qualey i) 161,103. 0. 0. 6,444. 29,533. 197,080. 0.
Mng Director Clinical Services (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(3) Alon Marom | 143,864. 0. 0. 5,755. 10,047. 159,666. 0.
Director of Community Giving (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

U]
(i)
U]
(i)

(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)

(ii)
U]
(ii)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2018
832112 10-26-18



Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Page 3

| Part Ill | Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 63, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2018

832113 10-26-18



SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) 20 1 8

P Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885
[Partl | Types of Property

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Check if Number of Noncash contribution Method of determining
applicable | contributions or [ amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts

items contributed| Form 990, Part VIII, line 1g

Art - Works of art

Art - Historical treasures

Art - Fractional interests
Books and publications

Clothing and household goods
Cars and other vehicles

Boats and planes
Intellectual property
Securities - Publicly traded X 5 14,801.[List price donated

X 16,448.|selling price

Securities - Closely held stock
Securities - Partnership, LLC, or
trust interests

- -
- O 0O O NO G A~ WON =

12  Securities - Miscellaneous
13 Qualified conservation contribution -
Historic structures

14 Qualified conservation contribution - Other
15 Real estate - Residential

16 Real estate - Commercial

17 Real estate - Other
18 Collectibles
19 Food inventory X 132 19,054.|selling price

20 Drugs and medical supplies
21  Taxidermy
22 Historical artifacts

23 Scientific specimens
24 Archeological artifacts

25 Other P ( Program Suppl ) X 55 16,061.|selling price
26 Other P ( )
27 Other P ( )
28 Other P ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement 29
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through 28, that it
must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn’t required to be used for
exempt purposes for the entire NoIdING PeriOA Y 30a X
b If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part I1.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? 31 X

32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
CONEIDULIONS? e 32a X

b If "Yes," describe in Part Il.
33 If the organization didn’t report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,

describe in Part II.
LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule M (Form 990) 2018  Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885 Page 2

Part Il Supplemental Information. provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether the organization
is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete
this part for any additional information.

Schedule M, Part I, Column (b):

The number represents the number of contributors.

832142 10-18-18 Schedule M (Form 990) 2018



. OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ -

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 20 1 8

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, line 11b:

A pdf copy of the Form 990 will be sent via email to each officer and

director before the 990 is filed with a request for acknowledgement,

questions and comments due before the filing date.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 1l2c:

Kids In Crisis requires the trustees, directors, officers and key employees

to complete and sign an annual disclosure statement in regards to their

conflicts.

Form 990, Part VI, Section B, Line 15:

A careful review of salaries is conducted throughout the area as well as a

regional and national review. This review is based on other non-profits,

public agencies, schools and other business entities that may be

comparable. The Executive Director, Managing Directors and Director of

Business Operations are responsible for annually reviewing the

compensation. A compensation recommendation is then made to the Chairman

of the Board of Directors and Finance Committee. The decision is

ultimately based on the needs of the agency and the availability of funds.

Form 990, Part VI, Section C, Line 19:

Kids In Crisis makes their governing documents, conflict of interest policy

as well as their financial statement available upon request. A summary of

the audited financial statements can be found on the organization's

website.

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)
832211 10-10-18



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885
Form 990, Part IX, Line 1llg, Other Fees:
Psychiatric/Psychology/medical:
Program service expenses 162,139.
Management and general expenses 0.
Fundraising expenses 0.
Total expenses 162,139.
Staff Search and Training:
Program service expenses 4,331.
Management and general expenses 373.
Fundraising expenses 781.
Total expenses 5,485.
Payroll:
Program service expenses 41,663.
Management and general expenses 6,324.
Fundraising expenses 5,973.
Total expenses 53,960.
Consulting:
Program service expenses 72,016.
Management and general expenses 433.
Fundraising expenses 8,870.
Total expenses 81,319.
Cleaning:
Program service expenses 11,544.
Management and general expenses 1,191.

832212 10-10-18
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018) Page 2

Name of the organization Employer identification number
Kids In Crisis, Inc. 06-1027885

Fundraising expenses 1,541.
Total expenses 14,276.
Retirement:

Program service expenses 2,092.
Management and general expenses 326.
Fundraising expenses 299.
Total expenses 2,717.
Total Other Fees on Form 990, Part IX, line 1l1lg, Col A 319,896.

Form 990, Part XII, Line 2C

The organization has a committee that is responsible for the oversight

of the audit, its financial statements as well as the selection of an

independent accountant. The process has not changed from the prior

year.

832212 10-10-18 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Kids In Crisis, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kids In Crisis, Inc. (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related
statements of activities and change in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Kids In Crisis, Inc. as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, Kids In Crisis
adopted Accounting Standards Update 2016-14, “Not-for-Profit Entities.” Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Madn Coi L

Purchase, NY
January 17, 2020

| Morison KSi
Independcent member



Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable

KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

Current portion of contributions receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectible contributions of $5,175 in 2019 and $-0- in 2018

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Contributions Receivable, net of current portion and discount
of $13,344 in 2019 and $15,201 in 2018

Property and Equipment, net

Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Total Net Assets

2019

$ 1,771,177
6,039,145
114,699

734,655
3,226
8,662,902

141,351

3,746,230

§ 12,550.483

$ 113,859
145,855

259,714

7,368,677

4,922,092
12,290,769

$ 12,550,483

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2018

$ 1,836,542
5,504,561
121,011

506,384
3,482
7,971,980

167,541

3,878,431

$12,017,952

$ 127,118
143,488
46,000

316,606

7,084,223

4,617,123
11,701,346

$ 12,017,952



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Government Support
Federal
Municipal

Total Government Support

Direct Support
Contributions
Special events revenue
Special events expenses
Net assets released from restrictions:
Release of other time and purpose restrictions

Total Direct Support

Greenwich United Way
Non-cash contributions
Investment return
Net assets released from restrictions:
Release of appropriated endowment restrictions
Miscellaneous revenues

Total Other Revenue
Total Support and Revenue

EXPENSES

Safe Haven

Community services
Management and general
Fund development

Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

WITHOUT DONOR WITH DONOR
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL

$ 176,694  $ - $ 176,694
695,059 - 695,059

871,753 - 871,753

1,356,421 1,420,450 2,776,871
1,005,791 - 1,005,791
(334,628) - (334,628)

1,190,481 (1,190,481) -
3,218,065 229,969 3,448,034

260 75,000 75,260

51,563 - 51,563

321,990 275,173 597,163

275,173 (275,173) -

64,227 - 64,227

713,213 75,000 788,213

4,803,031 304,969 5,108,000
2,148,296 - 2,148,296
1,656,218 - 1,656,218

183,366 - 183,366

530,697 - 530,697

4,518,577 - 4,518,577

284,454 304,969 589,423

7,084,223 4,617,123 11,701,346

$ 7,368,677 $ 4922092  $ 12,290,769

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Government Support
Federal
Municipal

Total Government Support

Direct Support
Contributions
Special events revenue
Special events expenses
Net assets released from restrictions:
Release of other time and purpose restrictions

Total Direct Support

Greenwich United Way
Non-cash contributions
Investment return
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Net assets released from restrictions:
Release of appropriated endowment restrictions
Miscellaneous revenues

Total Other Revenue
Total Support and Revenue

EXPENSES

Safe Haven

Community services
Management and general
Fund development

Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

WITHOUT DONOR WITH DONOR
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL

$ 155,037  $ - $ 155037
590,524 - 590,524

745,561 - 745,561

1,503,855 988,716 2,492,571
1,062,697 - 1,062,697
(385,174) - (385,174)

848,785 (848,785) -

3,030,163 139,931 3,170,094

- 68,000 68,000

33,569 - 33,569

170,498 162,375 332,873

796,816 - 796,816

162,375 (162,375) -

41,594 - 41,594

1,204,852 68,000 1,272,852
4,980,576 207,931 5,188,507
2,270,071 - 2,270,071
1,091,762 - 1,091,762

212,596 - 212,596

518,117 - 518,117
4,092,546 - 4,092,546

888,030 207,931 1,095,961

6,196,193 4,409,192 10,605,385

$ 7,084223 $ 4617123  $ 11,701,346

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Salaries

Employee benefits and taxes
Total Payroll and Related Expenditures

Consultants/contract services
Vehicle expenses

Food and residents' expenses
Program and household supplies
Office supplies and other
Occupancy costs

Telephone

Equipment maintenance and repairs

Insurance

Postage and shipping
Publications and mailing
Provision for doubtful accounts

Miscellaneous

Depreciation expense
Total Expenses with Special Events Expenses

Less: special events expenses recorded
on statement of activities

Total Expenses

PROGRAM SERVICES

KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL 2018

Safe Community Management Fund FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

Haven Services Total and General Development Total EXPENSES EXPENSES
1,186,047 $ 1,230,309 $ 2,416,356 $ 92,704 $ 353,873 446,577 $ 2,862,933 $ 2,505,272
318,638 263,107 581,745 13,707 63,231 76,938 658,683 602,361
1,504,685 1,493,416 2,998,101 106,411 417,104 523,515 3,521,616 3,107,633
275,761 68,149 343,910 20,000 68,106 88,106 432,016 486,330
20,254 3,147 23,401 786 3,627 4,413 27,814 24,269
67,930 - 67,930 - 31,278 - 99,208 100,916
26,818 7,291 34,109 - - - 34,109 38,845
14,527 7,984 22,511 24,521 45,453 69,974 92,485 111,555
23,331 3,168 26,499 1,152 194,486 195,638 222,137 137,574
2,198 1,084 3,282 922 466 1,388 4,670 4,794
39,046 10,286 49,332 4,747 5,589 10,336 59,668 77,115
31,295 6,814 38,109 1,895 1,704 3,599 41,708 42,141
600 289 889 369 5,243 5,612 6,501 9,106
10,240 8,024 18,264 133 53,839 53,972 72,236 78,103

- - - 5,175 - 5,175 5,175 2,105

4,998 2,352 7,350 7,206 18,332 25,538 32,888 50,282
126,613 44,214 170,827 10,049 20,098 30,147 200,974 206,952
2,148,296 1,656,218 3,804,514 183,366 865,325 1,048,691 4,853,205 4,477,720
- - - - (334,628) (334,628) (334,628) (385,174)
2,148,296 $ 1,656,218 $§ 3,804,514 $ 183,366 $ 530,697 $ 714,063 $ 4,518,577 $ 4,092,546

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES
TOTAL
Safe Community Management Fund FUNCTIONAL
Haven Services Total and General Development Total EXPENSES

Salaries $ 1,271,440 $ 750,428 $ 2,021,868 $ 125,888 §$ 357,516 $ 483,404 $ 2,505,272
Employee benefits and taxes 395,929 138,523 534,452 22,563 45,346 67,909 602,361
Total Payroll and Related Expenditures 1,667,369 888,951 2,556,320 148,451 402,862 551,313 3,107,633
Consultants/contract services 227,217 104,784 332,001 21,117 133,212 154,329 486,330
Vehicle expenses 18,419 3,838 22,257 341 1,671 2,012 24,269
Food and residents' expenses 44,824 - 44,824 - 56,092 56,092 100,916
Program and household supplies 30,171 8,674 38,845 - - - 38,845
Office supplies and other 9,473 4,354 13,827 3,756 93,972 97,728 111,555
Occupancy costs 25,103 3,409 28,512 1,240 107,822 109,062 137,574
Telephone 2,017 1,569 3,586 760 448 1,208 4,794
Equipment maintenance and repairs 58,979 8,830 67,809 3,507 5,799 9,306 77,115
Insurance 34,134 5,057 39,191 1,686 1,264 2,950 42,141
Postage and shipping 1,041 416 1,457 660 6,989 7,649 9,106
Publications and mailing 13,678 13,482 27,160 195 50,748 50,943 78,103
Provision for doubtful accounts - - - 2,105 - 2,105 2,105
Miscellaneous 7,266 2,869 10,135 18,430 21,7117 40,147 50,282
Depreciation expense 130,380 45,529 175,909 10,348 20,695 31,043 206,952
Total Expenses with Special Events Expenses 2,270,071 1,091,762 3,361,833 212,596 903,291 1,115,887 4,477,720

Less: special events expenses recorded

on statement of activities - - - - (385,174) (385,174) (385,174)

Total Expenses $ 2270071 $ 1,091,762 $ 3,361,833 § 212,596 $ 518,117 $ 730,713 § 4,092,546

See accompanying notes to financial statements. -6-



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Gain from disposal of property and equipment
Provision for doubtful accounts
Realized and unrealized gains on investments
Perpetually restricted contributions for investment
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Perpetually restricted contributions for investment

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

2019

$ 589423

200,974

5,175
(406,341)
(48,937)

6,312
(207,256)
256

(13,259)
2,367

(46,000)
(506,709)

82,714

(68,773)
1,199,546
(1,327,789)

(197,016)
48,937

(65,365)

1,836,542

$ 1771177

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2018

$ 1,095,961

206,952
(796,816)
2,105
(165,468)
(52,885)

(45,894)

(264,877)
1,014
19,986
6,422
1,000

(1,088,461)

7,500

843,113

(12,800)
1,610,796

(1,760,418)

680,691

52,885

741,076

1,095,466

$ 1,836,542



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 - OPERATIONS

Kids In Crisis, Inc. (“Kids In Crisis” or the “Organization”) provides free, 24-hour crisis intervention,
counseling and emergency shelter services, as well as prevention programs in local communities, and
advocacy throughout Connecticut. Kids In Crisis is the only emergency shelter in the state serving all
children, newborn to 17 years of age. Since 1978, Kids In Crisis has helped more than 154,000 children
and families, through a variety of in-house and community programming.

Kids In Crisis’ 24-hour helpline, 203-661-1911 is staffed by trained Outreach crisis counselors available
24 hours a day to provide immediate crisis counseling and to meet with children and their families in
need, in area communities.

For children who are no longer safe at home, Kids In Crisis provides SafeHaven for Kids, an emergency
shelter with a safe, nurturing, and therapeutic environment. Every child in residence receives routine
medical care, including a physical and mental health evaluation, and referrals to local doctors for
specialized care. This medical support is provided through the on-site TLC Health Center, licensed by
the Connecticut Department of Health and operated in partnership with Family Centers, Inc. In addition to
medical and psychological care, Kids In Crisis also provides residents with educational advocacy and
support to ensure long-term academic success.

Introduced in 1999, SafeTalk is an educational empowerment program, providing elementary school
children and parents with child-friendly workshops designed to educate about the signs of physical and
verbal abuse, including bullying and cyber bulling, good touch/bad touch and stranger danger.

This year Emotion Locomotion was formally launched in elementary schools to help students identify and
address their social and emotional feelings.

TeenTalk is a program that places trained crisis counselors in schools to offer support for middle and high
school students. These counselors provide confidential, short-term individual and small group counseling
on issues of the health and well-being of teens. This year, Kids In Crisis has seen an increase in
TeenTalk services and now has counselors in 11 schools.

Lighthouse is a welcoming, inclusive safe space where lesbian, gay, bi-sexual, transgender and
questioning (LGBTQ) youth, and their allies meet weekly.

Kids In Crisis continues to be the Fairfield County sponsor of Safe Place, a national program that partners
municipalities, businesses, and other local facilities to provide immediate help for any youths who may
find themselves in the community when a crisis develops.

In addition to programming, the agency was the recipient of a three-year challenge grant, allowing for the
hiring of a new development manager, and upgrading critical antiquated hardware and software.

Kids In Crisis also continues to work with the Greenwich Police Department, the Greenwich Board of
Education, and Greenwich Department of Human Services to implement two juvenile justice
diversion/restorative justice programs: the Juvenile Review Board and the Interagency Team. Kids In
Crisis provides case management and counseling for the youth involved in these programs.

Finally, Kids In Crisis partners with dozens of national, state, regional and local committees and task
forces that advocate for children and families.



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Basis

The Organization’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and
presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") guidance for not-for-profit
organizations. Under that guidance, the Organization is required to report information regarding its net
assets and revenues, gains, and losses based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as
follows:

o Without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to explicit donor-imposed
stipulations, including board designated funds functioning as endowment.

e With donor restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations, including
stipulations that will be met either by actions of the Organization or the passage of time,
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization, and net assets from
endowments not yet appropriated for spending. When time and purpose restrictions expire,
net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

Government Grants: Certain grants and contracts are on a fee-for-service basis where revenue is
recognized when earned. Other grants used to pay operating expenses based on budgeted cost levels
are recognized ratably over the lives of the grants. Expenditure-driven grant revenue (i.e., the
Organization must first incur the expenditure as a basis for reimbursement) is recognized when the
related expenditure is incurred.

Contributions Receivable: Unconditional promises to give expected to be collected in one year or less
are recognized as revenue in the period received at net realizable value and as assets or as decreases of
liabilities or expenses, depending on the form of the benefits received. Unconditional promises to give
that are expected to be collected in greater than one year are recorded at the present value of their
estimated future cash flows. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met. The Organization provides an allowance for estimated uncollectible
contributions. The Organization receives fixed, annual support from the Greenwich United Way.

Contributions: Contributions are recognized as support without donor restrictions unless their use is
specifically restricted by the donor. When a donor restriction expires, the stipulated time restriction ends,
or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, net assets with restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and change in net assets as released from
restrictions. Contributions for which restrictions are fulfilled in the same time period in which the
contributions are received are recognized as support without restrictions. Contributions that are restricted
(endowed) by the donor, from which the Organization may utilize only the income, are recognized as net
assets with donor restrictions.

Non-cash Contributions

A significant number of volunteers donate their time in the furtherance of the Organization's programs and
activities. Volunteers perform various administrative, programming, and fundraising functions. However,
the value of these services is not recognized in the financial statements unless the donated service
received creates or enhances non-financial assets or requires specialized skills that would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by contribution. In addition, in-kind contributions are measured at the fair
value of the assets transferred to the Organization to the extent the Organization would have purchased
the merchandise.

-9-



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are capitalized at cost, if purchased, or at estimated fair value on the date of gift,
if donated. Acquisitions of property and equipment whose cost is $1,000 or more, and whose useful life is
greater than one year are capitalized as incurred. Property and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method based on their respective estimated useful lives ranging from three to thirty-five
years. Repairs and maintenance to existing facilities are expensed as incurred.

Investments

Kids In Crisis follows FASB guidance on fair value, which among other things, defines fair value,
establishes a hierarchal framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about fair value
measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value hierarchy is organized into three levels based upon the assumptions (referred to as “inputs”)
used in pricing the asset or liability, as follows:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, with fair value being determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies.

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability and are used to the extent that
observable inputs do not exist. Level 3 inputs require significant management judgment and estimation.
Factors considered include the purchase cost, prices of recent private placements of the same issuer,
liquidity of the investment, changes in financial condition of the issuer, and valuations of similar
companies.

Kids In Crisis values its investments in readily marketable securities using Level 1 inputs. The
Organization reports investment income and gains and losses as increases or decreases in net assets
without donor restrictions in the statements of activities and change in net assets unless a donor or law
restricts their use. Investments are managed in accordance with board-approved investment and
spending policies. Investment expenses against investment return are recorded on the face of
statements of activities and change in net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Kids in Crisis regularly
assesses these estimates and, while actual results may differ from these estimates, management
believes that material changes will not occur in the near term.

-10 -



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in the accompanying statements of activities and change in net assets, and functional expenses. The
financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or
supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocations on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes,
professional services, office expenses, information technology, insurance, depreciation, and other, which
are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Accrued Compensated Absences
The Organization’s policy allows employees to carry forward, from year to year, eighty hours of sick, and
eighty hours of vacation time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all dollar-denominated, highly
liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

Kids In Crisis evaluates all significant tax positions in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. As of June 30, 2019, Kids In Crisis does not believe that it has
taken any positions that would require the recording of any additional tax liability nor does it believe that
there are any unrealized tax benefits that would either increase or decrease within the next year.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications of the prior year amounts were made to conform to the current year presentation.
These changes had no impact on the change in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

FASB Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-14, “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) — Presentation
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities” was adopted for the year ended June 30, 2019. The
Organization has adjusted the presentation of its financial statements accordingly, applying the changes
retrospectively to the comparative period presented. ASU 2016-14 provides for a number of changes
including the presentation of two classes of net assets and enhanced disclosure of liquid resources and
expense allocation. These changes had no impact on the change in net assets for the year ended
June 30, 2019. Due to these changes, the Organization has reclassified prior periods and fully
comparative financial statements are presented. Net assets as of June 30, 2018 were reclassified to
conform to the new presentation. The unrestricted net asset class has been renamed net assets without
donor restrictions. Temporarily and Permanently restricted net asset classes have been combined and
named as net asset with donor restrictions.

-11 -



KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The FASB has issued standards that the Organization must consider for adoption over the next three
years. Those standards include the following: 1) “Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made”, effective for the year ended June 30, 2020; which aims
to assist entities in evaluating whether contributions should be accounted for as contributions or
exchange transactions and determination as to whether a contribution is conditional, and 2) “Leases,”
effective for the year ended June 30, 2022, which aims to increase transparency and comparability
among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial
position and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. 3) “Revenues from Contracts with
Customers,” which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled
for the transfer of promised goods or services. According to the new revenue recognition standard,
revenue recognition will follow a five-step process, which will apply to the Organization. The Organization
is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these standards on its financial statements.

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Kids In Crisis carries its receivables at cost and uses the allowance method for doubtful accounts. On a
periodic basis, the Organization evaluates its contributions receivable and whether the balances are
collectible.

Contributions receivable at June 30 represent unconditional promises to give as follows:

2019 2018

Amount due in one year or less $ 739,830 $ 506,384
Amount due in two to five years 154,695 182,742
894,525 689,126

Allowance for uncollectible contributions (5,175) -
Discount to present value at 3% (13,344) (15,201)
Total Contributions Receivable, net $ 876,006 $ 673,925

NOTE 4 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs, while also striving to
maximize the investment of its available funds. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its
disposal, including cash and cash equivalents, marketable equity securities and receivables. For
purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of providing services for children
and community as well as services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures. In
addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Organization anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-
restricted resources.
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KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 4 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

As of June 30, 2019, the Organization’s financial assets were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,771,177
Accounts receivable 114,699
Contributions receivable 876,006
Investments 6,039,145

Subtotal of financial assets at year end 8,801,027

Less amounts with limits on usage:

Net assets with donor restrictions (4,922,092)
Long-term portion of contributions receivable (141,351)
Total financial assets available for general use within one year $ 3,737,584

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management plan, the Organization invests cash in excess of daily
requirements in money market funds.

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS

Investments which are all level 1 investments, are comprised of the following funds at June 30:

2019 2018
Equity funds $ 3,788,076 $ 3,356,885
Bond funds 2,251,069 2,147,676
Total Investments $ 6,039,145 $ 5,504,561

Investment return was comprised of the following for the years ended June 30:

2019 2018

Interest and dividend income $ 190,822 $ 167,405
Net realized and unrealized gains 406,341 165,468
Total Investment Return $ 597,163 $ 332,873

Investments are managed in accordance with the Organization’s board-approved investment and
spending policies. The primary investment objective is to preserve and enhance the endowment fund by
earning a competitive return from a combination of investment income and capital appreciation without
exposing the assets to undue long-term risk.
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KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 — NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes as of June 30:

2019 2018

Purpose and Time Restricted Net Assets
Safe Haven $ 110,000 $ 67,500
TeenTalk 170,000 50,000
Recreation 2,560 -
Aftercare 37,689 37,689
Education 7,500 7,500
Time restricted 266,816 212,413
Capital projects 1,405,121 1,368,552
Subtotal of Purpose and Time Restricted Net Assets 1,999,686 1,743,654

Perpetual Net Assets (Endowment)

Available for general operations 2,676,569 2,627,632
Restricted to support education 106,397 106,397
Restricted to support the medical program 139,440 139,440
Subtotal of Perpetual Net Assets (Endowment) 2,922,406 2,873,469
Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions $4,922,092 $4,617,123

Net assets released from restrictions were as follows during the years ended June 30:

2019 2018

Program related expenses $ 1,056,045 $ 771,000
Release of time restriction 134,436 77,785
Direct Support Net Assets Released from Restrictions 1,190,481 848,785
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure 275,173 162,375
Total Net Assets Released from Restrictions $ 1,465,654 $ 1,011,160

Changes in endowment, which consist of perpetual net assets with donor restrictions only, for the years
ended June 30 were as follows:

2019 2018
Endowment, beginning of year $ 2,873,469 $ 2,820,584
Contributions 48,937 52,885
Investment income 275,173 162,375
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure (275,173) (162,375)
Endowment, end of year $ 2,922,406 $ 2,873,469
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KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 — NET ASSETS (Continued)

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization’s board of directors has interpreted the State of Connecticut's Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (‘CUPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations
to the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as with donor restrictions net assets (a) the
original value of gifts donated to the with donor restrictions endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the with donor restrictions endowment, and (c) accumulations, if any, to the with donor
restrictions endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable gift instrument at the time
the accumulation is added to the fund.

Investments are managed in accordance with the Organization’s board-approved investment and
spending policies. The primary investment objective is to preserve capital and minimize investment risk.
The Organization has a policy of appropriating all income earned annually on the endowment for current
year operations.

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2019 2018

Land $ 1,236,000 $ 1,236,000
Building 2,162,932 2,162,932
Building improvements 3,515,197 3,515,197
Furniture and fixtures 244,199 458,766
Vehicles 122,714 122,714
7,281,042 7,495,609

Less: accumulated depreciation (3,534,812) (3,617,178)
Total Property and Equipment, net $ 3,746,230 $ 3,878,431

NOTE 8 - TAX-DEFERRED ANNUITY PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The plan covers all full-time employees with over one year of service and part-time
employees with at least one thousand hours of service annually. The Organization automatically
contributes 2% of the base salary and 50% of an employee’s contribution up to 2%. Contributions by the
organization vest 100% after three years of service. Pension expense was $74,733 and $74,306 for the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3).
Contributions made to the Organization are qualified for the maximum tax deductions allowable under the
United States Internal Revenue Code.
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KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 10 - CONTRIBUTIONS

Details of contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

GENERAL PERPETUAL
OPERATIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL
Individuals $ 1,302,430 $ 48,937 $ 1,351,367
Corporations 603,077 - 603,077
Foundations 644,376 - 644,376
Religious and other organizations 178,051 - 178,051
Total Contributions $ 2,727,934 $ 48,937 $ 2,776,871

Details of contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

GENERAL PERPETUAL
OPERATIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL
Individuals $ 880,089 $ 52,885 $ 932,974
Corporations 333,831 - 333,831
Foundations 906,573 - 906,573
Religious and other organizations 319,193 - 319,193
Total Contributions $ 2,439,686 $ 52,885 $ 2492571

The general operations columns include both general operations and purpose and time restricted
contributions.

NOTE 11 - SPECIAL EVENTS

The Organization holds three major special events each year: Gala, KIC IT Races, and Kids' Challenge
Golf Tournament. Additionally, the Organization runs a number of smaller fundraising events hosted by
donors and volunteers each year. Other important fundraising events include Have-A-Heart in Ridgefield
and the Cards for Kids Tournament.

Contributions raised through the events are directed to the general operations of Kids In Crisis. All
contributions are included in special events revenue in the statements of activities and change in net
assets.

NOTE 12 - CONCENTRATIONS

The Organization maintains its cash and cash equivalents at several financial institutions. Accounts at
each institution are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC").
Additionally, the Organization maintains investment accounts with an investment firm that is covered by
Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC") insurance. At June 30, 2019, cash and cash
equivalent balances exceeded FDIC insurance limits by $377,967.
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KIDS IN CRISIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 17, 2020, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors
Kids In Crisis, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Kids In Crisis, Inc. as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, and our report thereon dated January 17, 2020, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements appears on page one. The supplementary information is presented for the purpose
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Purchase, NY
January 17, 2020

' Morison KSi

Indepandent member
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